
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
March 16, 2016 

NOT APPROVED 
 

Committee Members Present: K. Graves, N. Ungermann, C. Crandall (Absent: D. Fanton, A. 
McGraw, T. O’Grady) 

Others Present: L. Bliven, H. Budinger, D. Decker, K. Demick, L. Edwards, L. Gridley, D. 
Hanchett, G. Hanchett,  D. Healy, R. Hollis, J. Hopkins, L. Hunsberger, G. James, C. 
Jessup, B. Jones, C. Knapp, K. LaForge, J. Margeson, T. Miner, D. Pullen, B. Reynolds, 
B. Riehle, T. Ross, R. Scott, R. Sobeck-Lynch, M. Trivisondoli 

Media Present:  B. Quinn, Wellsville Daily Reporter 

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 1:01 p.m. by Resource Management 
Committee Chairman Karl Graves. 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Legislator Ungermann, seconded by Chairman Crandall, and 
carried to approve the Resource Management Committee minutes of January 20, 2016. 

County Historian 

 County Historian Craig Braack was not in attendance.  He was on vacation. 
 
Soil & Water Conservation 
 
Monthly Report  

Executive Director Scott Torrey pre-filed his monthly report.  Legislator Graves noted Mr. 
Torrey was not in attendance because he was out canvassing sites. 

 
Youth Bureau  

Monthly Report 
 Director Linda Edwards pre-filed her January and February monthly reports. Ms. 
Edwards asked if anyone had any questions.  She highlighted a couple of items on her monthly 
report. She stated she did not attend the Youth Leadership Forum in February because only 
one youth was able to attend.  Ms. Edwards could not find the youth a roommate, so they 
decided not to go.  She did send letters to the Senator Cathy Young and Assemblyman Joe 
Giglio asking for financial support for the budget.  Ms. Edwards reported the invitations for the 
Youth Board Dinner have been sent out. The notice for the Youth Recognition Awards was sent 
out as well, and she is waiting for nomination information. Ms. Edwards stated if any of the 
Committee members would like to attend, please let her know.  Legislator Graves stated he 
plans on attending.  Ms. Edwards participated in the statewide Bureau of Youth Development 
conference call this morning.  She stated they were recognized for having a zero balance for the 
2015 funding.  They have billed the State for all of their money, and are closed out for 2015.  
Finally, she stated she received an email today that the 2016 funding for the youth development 
programming will remain the same amount as 2015. 
 
 



Resource Management Committee Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

Page 2 of 4 
 
Cornell Cooperative Extension 
 
Monthly Report 
 Executive Director Laura Hunsberger stated she will distribute the newsletter Extension 
Connection in the Legislators’ mailboxes.  She reported it is Agricultural Literacy Week.  They 
are reading to second grade classrooms about agricultural practices.  This year’s book is on 
apples.  Ms. Hunsberger noted they have had record turnout for their programs.  Over 100 
people and 10 presenters attended the Rural Landowners’ Workshop on March 5, 2016.  She 
reported 52 people attended the Producing Quality Beef Program.  Ms. Hunsberger also noted 
that 64 4-Hers participated in the Public Speaking Program.  She said eight are going on to the 
State competition. Finally, Ms. Hunsberger stated the nutrition program educator is sharing five 
different curriculums throughout the County such as diabetes and money management. 
 
Allegany County Right to Farm Law 
 Agriculture and Natural Resource Issue Leader Lynn Bliven discussed revisiting and 
changing the Right to Farm Law.  Ms. Bliven stated it started when the Economic Development 
Councils were formed in the State.  A report that came out from an agricultural program in our 
district questioned whether Allegany County had a Right to Farm Law. Ms. Bliven stated they 
have been working on this law for several years. She stated the Law is primarily to broaden the 
definition of agricultural practice, define standards, and if they are acceptable they are done in a 
sound manner.  Ms. Bliven requested a resolution to approve the Right to Farm Law.  
 Legislator Graves asked if she had spoken to the County Attorney.  Ms. Bliven said she 
had spoken with County Attorney Tom Miner.  Mr. Miner stated he was comfortable with what 
they have presented.  Chairman Crandall said the original law was first introduced in 1996, and 
asked if there were any changes since then.  Mr. Miner stated there haven’t been any changes.  
Ms. Bliven stated Allegany County was one of the earlier counties to adopt this type of 
resolution.  Since then, other Counties have adopted laws that have broader terms. Ms. Bliven 
said they have seen more interest from the towns that want to address this in their 
comprehensive plans.  Mr. Miner stated there should also be a companion State Environment 
Quality Review (SEQR), which would delay the process.  
 Legislator Graves noted number nine on part B “Agricultural Products” talked about 
woody biomass. Legislator Graves asked if that would be a roadblock for the Bio-energy 
Program. Chairman Crandall believes it will help promote the program.  Ms. Bliven said there is 
added protection for landowners that chose to do the agricultural piece, but it is not a 
requirement.  Chairman Crandall asked who would take exception to this law.  Ms. Bliven stated 
she was unsure because they are not expanding or requiring anything.  They are clearly 
defining what agricultural practices are and what agriculture is.  
 Ms. Bliven stated it has gone through the Agriculture and Farmland Protection Board. 
She has also shared it with the Farm Bureau. Legislator Graves asked what the primary 
advantage is to changing the Right to Farm Law. Ms. Bliven stated it is to clarify what is an 
agricultural business and that there are standard approved practices that occur in agricultural 
areas.  Chairman Crandall noted if it goes to the full Board, they would need a public hearing.  
Chairman Crandall made a motion to distribute the Right to Farm to the other members of the 
Legislature for review and feedback, and to readdress it again at the next Resource 
Management Committee meeting, seconded by Legislator Ungermann, and carried.   
 
NYSAC Resolution – Farmland Preservation and Agriculture Local Assistance Programs 
 The resolution is to support funding for farmland preservation and agriculture local 
assistance programs.  Legislator Graves noted Soil and Water Conservation Executive Director 



Resource Management Committee Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

Page 3 of 4 
 
Scott Torrey felt it would be appropriate to support this resolution.  Chairman Crandall stated the 
resolution should include sending it to local representatives as well. A motion to support the 
Farmland Preservation and Agriculture Local Assistance Programs Resolution was made by 
Legislator Ungermann, seconded by Legislator Crandall, and carried. Prepare Resolution 
 
Appointments to Youth Board 

 At the March 14, 2016, Board meeting, the Chairman of the Board reappointed the 
following as members of the Allegany County Youth Board for a three-year term commencing 
March 26, 2016, and expiring March 25, 2019, subject to confirmation by the Board of 
Legislators: 

 Corrine Davis, Angelica  District I 
 Deborah Hint, Cuba   District II 
 Robert Starks, Wellsville  District III 
 Kim Bolander, Wellsville  District IV 
 Tammy Kokot, Almond  District V 

 The request was approved on a motion by Legislator Crandall, seconded by Legislator 
Ungermann, and carried.  Prepare Resolution 

Angelica Town Officials and Town Highway Association – Dan Hanchett 

 Legislator Graves stated Angelica Town Supervisor Bob Jones requested to address the 
committee.  Mr. Jones stated he appreciated the opportunity, and read a prepared letter for the 
record.  After the letter was read, Legislator Ungermann made some comments.  He said he 
has always been in favor of posting the roads during the spring break-up.  He believes that is an 
absolute necessity for a town road because they don’t have the thickness of pavement that is 
tolerated when a frost comes out of the ground and gets soft underneath.  He has always been 
personally very careful when the ground is frozen, and when it starts to thaw they get off from it.  
Legislator Ungermann stated he is going to take exception to the idea that the UPS truck or 
school bus being overweight is untrue because he has asked what a standard delivery truck 
weighs, and it is over 18,000 pounds.  He believes a 52 passenger bus is considerably heavier.  
He realizes that you are not supposed to stop a local delivery.  Legislator Ungermann stated 
unfortunately that often the second page of the state law is not read.  He said if the new forest 
economy comes to pass, the roads are really going to be used.  He added leaving the postings 
up 365 days a year is going to be a problem for commerce if they do that.  Legislator 
Ungermann said he wants this County to grow.  If they put up road blocks, then they have a 
problem. Legislator Ungermann stated they can have a permit system, but it is another 
roadblock to commerce where they are overrun by rules and regulations.  He realizes dirt roads 
are probably more expensive to maintain, but when you put a little bit of oil and stone down it is 
not going to tolerate 50,000 to 60,000 pounds. 
  Angelica Superintendent of Highways Fred Demick says he understands what 
Legislator Ungermann is saying.  First, to say the only time of year they are going to have a 
problem is in the spring, is a huge mistake.  Mr. Demick used this winter as an example.  Mr. 
Demick also said the postings are a protection, they are not stifling anything.   He said page two 
of our law covers everything Legislator Ungermann is talking about.  There is no cost for the 
permit, but there is a bonding system that protects them.  He said he has worked with different 
contractors for over 20 years with no issues.  He believes it is a huge mistake to make 
comments that they are stifling growth.  He said there is going to be a lot more going on, and we 



Resource Management Committee Minutes 
March 16, 2016 

Page 4 of 4 
 
need to protect ourselves.  Mr. Demick stated he is a representative to the Highway 
Superintendent Association and he knows that it is an ongoing problem for everyone. 
 Legislator Ungermann stated he doesn’t deny that.  He doesn’t mind posting a road from 
November to March.  It is when they are posted the entire year, that he has a problem.  Mr. 
Demick stated a posting that is up all year round is just to give them a warning.  He said there is 
a simple permit they fill out in his office.  It takes about 10 minutes.  Mr. Demick said it saves 
him, and he knows what is going on.  If a citizen calls about a concern, he can talk to them 
about it.  He doesn’t stop anyone; they just control it a little bit. Legislator Ungermann stated he 
can understand posting a road for through traffic, but making them go 10 to 15 miles out of the 
way is not necessarily a good idea. Legislator Ungermann stated they are trying to make a living 
too.  Mr. Demick stated they don’t believe they should do that at the cost of their taxpayers.   
 Mr. Demick stated he gave the contractor for the Horner Lot a permit for 48 days, and he 
still didn’t get it done.  He believes the problem was that the contractor had another job, and 
thought he could do it in 30 days.  He added the contractor can renew his permit.   Mr. Demick 
stated they are requesting that when someone has a contract with the County, they should 
contact the local municipality to open a line of communication.  They would like to see this in 
writing.  Legislator Graves stated it is a good recommendation.   
 Chairman Crandall commented that opinions are in the minutes, and are not necessarily 
the position of the Committee. The action taken out of the January minutes was to extend the 
contract.  He suggested changing the language in future contracts, and sending a memo from 
the County Attorney to existing Contractors to be aware of local laws.  Any contract with the 
County does not supersede any local laws.  County Attorney Tom Miner stated the County only 
has a few contracts.  Mr. Demick said he spoke to two contractors, and they thought it was a 
great idea if they knew who they would have to talk to.  Chairman Crandall made a motion to 
ask the County Attorney’s office to send a memo to the Allegany County Soil and Water 
Conservation District and Contractors to ask them to be aware of the local laws as they pertain 
to road posting weight limits, and include in future contracts, seconded by Legislator 
Ungermann, and carried. 
 
Adjournment 

 There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting was 
adjourned at 1:43   p.m. following a motion by Legislator Ungermann, seconded by Legislator 
Crandall, and carried 

Respectfully submitted, 
Rebecca Scott, Secretary to the Clerk of the Board 
Allegany County Board of Legislators 


